Public Document Pack

28 September 2021

To:

Councillors Baker, Hutton and D Scott

The above members are requested to attend the:

LICENSING PANEL
Thursday, 7 October 2021 at 10.00 am
Zoom Meeting

AGENDA
1

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN
To appoint a Chairman for the meeting.

2

DECLARATION OF INTEREST - LICENSING
Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in
doing so state:(1) the type of interest concerned
(2) the nature of the interest concerned; and
(3) whether they have or have not sat on a Planning Committee which has previously
considered a planning application in respect of a licensed premises which is also subject
to consideration for a premises licence as part of the agenda for this meeting.
If any Member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting.
(Members are asked to also pay particular attention to the guidance sheet on interests
supplied with the agenda).

3

PROCEDURE FOR THE MEETING
The Chairman of the Panel will summarise the procedure and announce the equal
maximum amount of time for each party to speak for the hearing.

A.
Items 1 and 4 (b) will be undertaken in private session by the Panel and not in
public.
B.
Items 2, 3 and 4(a) will be recommended to the Panel to be held in public.
C.
The Panel may decide to exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it
considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the
hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public. (This includes a party and
any person assisting or representing a party)
4

APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE- SHERBORNE CONVENIENCE STORE
(Pages 1 - 40)
To consider an application in respect of a new Premises Licence in respect of
Sherbourne Convenience Store, 80 Sherbourne Road, Blackpool, FY1 2PQ
A. Application and representations submitted. To consider the attached report.
B. Determination of the application for a new Premises Licence – Sherborne
Convenience Store
The Licensing Panel will indicate how the decision is to be communicated to interested
parties.

Other information:
For queries regarding this agenda please contact Sarah Chadwick, Democratic Governance
Advisor, Tel: 01253 477153, e-mail sarah.chadwick@blackpool.gov.uk
Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk.

Agenda Item 4
Report to:

LICENSING PANEL

Relevant Officer:

Judith Brooks-Brennan, Licensing Officer

Date of Meeting:

7 October 2021

APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – Sherbourne Convenience Store
1.0

Purpose of the report:

1.1

To consider an application for a new Premises Licence for Sherbourne Convenience Store,
80 Sherbourne Road, Blackpool, FY1 2PQ.

2.0

Recommendation(s):

2.1

The panel is requested to consider the application and determine whether the granting of
this licence would adversely impact on the Licensing Objectives.

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1

Representations have been received therefore there must be a hearing to determine the
application.

3.2

Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by
the Council?

No

3.3

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget?

Yes

4.0

Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1

None, once an application is submitted and representations received it must be
considered by the Licensing Panel.

5.0

Council priority:

5.1

The relevant Council priority is: “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across
Blackpool”.

6.0

Background information

6.1

On 16 August 2021 the Licensing Service received an application from Preradic Limited on
behalf of Mr Piratheep Kirusnasamy for a new Premises Licence at Sherbourne
Convenience Store, 80 Sherbourne Road, Blackpool, FY1 2PQ.

Page 1

The property has never held a Premises Licence. In January 2015 an application was made
by a previous operator for a Premises Licence to permit off sales of alcohol. That
application was refused as the premises was located within the Town Centre Saturation
Area.
6.2

The application requests permission to sell alcohol for consumption off the premises 10.00
– 22.00 Monday to Sunday with opening hours from 07:00 to 22:00 Monday to Sunday. A
copy of the application is attached at Appendix 4a.

6.3

Representations have been received from the Licensing Authority, Lancashire
Constabulary, the Child Protection Licensing Officer and Public Health. Copies of the
representations are attached at Appendices 4b to 4e.

6.4

Local policy considerations:
The premises falls within the area covered by the Off Licence Cumulative Impact
Assessment (CIA). The following sections of the policy are relevant:
4.9.1 The location of the main concentration of off-licensed premises suffers from high
levels of alcohol related crime and alcohol related hospital admissions. Applications for
new licences, or variation of hours within this area will be refused unless the applicant can
demonstrate that their application will not lead to an increase in the impact of off licensed
premises in this area.
4.10.1 Applications for new licences or variations to existing licences within a cumulative
impact area, which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact, will normally be
refused if a relevant representation is received. To persuade the Council to depart from its
policy an applicant must demonstrate that their application will not add to the existing
cumulative impact in the area. This should be done through the operating schedule and
the risk assessment process (if used).
4.10.4 Examples of factors the licensing authority will not consider to rebut the
presumption of refusal:
 The premises will be well managed and run as all licensed premises should meet
this standard
 The premises will be constructed to a high standard
 The applicant operates similar premises elsewhere without complaint.
4.10.6 Where representations are received the Council will consider the circumstances of
each individual application and decide whether it would be justified in departing from its
policy and CIA in the light of the individual circumstances of the case.

Page 2

6.5

National policy considerations:
9.12 – Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some
cases it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main
source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective… any responsible authority
under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the licensing
objectives if they have evidence to support such representations. Licensing authorities
must therefore consider all relevant representations from responsible authorities
carefully... However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure that
their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a
hearing.
9.43 – The authority’s decision should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to
achieve.
14.44 – After receiving relevant representations in relation to a new application for… a
licence or certificate, the licensing authority must consider whether it would be justified in
departing from its CIA in the light of the individual circumstances of the case... If the
licensing authority decides that an application should be refused, it will still need to show
that the grant of the application would undermine the promotion of one or more of the
licensing objectives and that appropriate conditions would be ineffective in preventing the
problems involved.

6.6

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

7.0

List of Appendices:

7.1

Appendix 4(a) Application form for a new Premises Licence
Appendix 4(b) Objection from Licensing Authority
Appendix 4(c) Objection from Lancashire Constabulary
Appendix 4(d) Objection from Child Protection Licensing Officer
Appendix 4(e) Objection from Public Health

8.0

Financial considerations:

8.1

None.

9.0

Legal considerations:

9.1

Please see local and national policy in the background information.

Page 3

No

10.0

Risk management considerations:

10.1

None.

11.0

Equalities considerations:

11.1

None.

12.0

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

12.1

None.

13.0

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

13.1

None.

14.0

Background papers:

14.1

None.

Page 4

Appendix 4a

Page 5

Page 6

Page 7

Page 8

Page 9

Page 10

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4b

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Appendix 4c: Blackpool Council Licensing Service

Representation made by a Responsible Authority
to an application for the grant / variation of a Premises
Licence / Club Premises Certificate
Responsible Authority
Name of Responsible
Authority
Name of Officer (please
print)

LANCASHIRE CONSTABULARY
PC 515 Guy HARRISON

Signature of Officer
Contact telephone number
Date representation made

01253 604073
21

08

21

Do you consider mediation to be appropriate

NO

Premises Details
Premises Name

Sherbourne Convenience Store

Address

80 Sherbourne Road
Blackpool

Post Code

FY1 2PQ

Reasons for making representations

I am in receipt of an application for a New Premises Licence for the above
address. On behalf of the Chief Officer of Police having reviewed the application
the Police wish to make a formal objection on the following grounds.
The Police base the objection on the fact that the new premises is within the Off
Licence Cumulative Impact Assessment Area. The purpose of this Policy is to
create a rebuttable presumption that any applications such as the above will be
refused a licence.
The number, type and density of the premises selling alcohol in a particular area
can lead to serious problems of nuisance and disorder. In these circumstances
the impact of the premises taken as a whole can be far greater than that arising
from individual premises. In most cases it would be impossible to identify an
individual premise as being the sole cause or major contributing factor.

RA Representation Form
LS/F/005/27/1

Page 31

It is noted that Blackpool has high levels of alcohol related harm for the size of
the population and has widespread deprivation within the Central Wards of the
town. There are already approximately 179 licensed premises in Blackpool, half
of which are located in the most deprived wards in the town.
In 2019 Lancashire Police recorded 12,001 alcohol related incidents and the
highest suffering area was Blackpool with 2,511 with the next highest being
Preston at 1,444. Of these incidents the two most affected wards are Claremont
and Talbot.
This premises falls within the Claremont Ward. This area is already well served
with off licences with both a MCCOLLS store and R&H Newsagents on Egerton
Road, and J&R Premier Store on Cromwell Road, less than a 5 minute walk
away. In addition, there is the CO-OP store on Dickson Road as well as the NISA
store on Devonshire Road, which are just off Claremont, but are nevertheless
directly adjacent to the ward.
According to Police logs in the last year (between 21/08/2020 – 21/08/2021) there
have been 178 recorded incidents on Sherbourne Road alone. These include
multiple assaults, public order incidents, nuisance reports and anti-social
behaviour. Many of these are directly attributable to alcohol consumption.
Additionally, I would also draw attention to the fact that over 500 logs were
reported in total for Cheltenham Road, Chesterfield Road and Clevedon Road in
the same period. This is very significant as these road runs directly into
Sherbourne Road, making this a very resource intensive location for the police.
Again, there is a preponderance of both violent crime and anti-social behaviour
among the incidents reported.
In total over 1800 incidents of anti-social behaviour were reported in Claremont
in the year period given.

It is the opinion of the Police that this premises would add to the cumulative
impact already being experienced in the area.
A hearing would allow the Licensing Committee to examine the prospective
operators’ intentions and rebut the presumption that the operation of the premises
will add to the cumulative impact and therefore crime and disorder.

It is recommended that the licence should only be granted if the application is
amended, or if conditions are applied, as detailed below.

N/A

RA Representation Form
LS/F/005/27/1

Page 32

Appendix 4d: Blackpool Council Licensing Service

Representation made by a Responsible Authority

Responsible Authority
Name of Responsible Authority

Blackpool Child Protection Licensing Officer

Name of Officer

Louise Scales

(please print)

L.M. Scales

Signature of Officer

07342 032205

Contact telephone number
Date representation made

7

9

2021

Do you consider mediation to be appropriate

NO

Premises Details
Premises Name

Sherbourne Convenience Store

Address

80 Sherbourne Road
Blackpool

Post Code

FY1 2PQ

Details of your representation (Please refer and attach any supporting documentation)

My role as Child Protection Licensing Officer focusses on managing the various risks that makes both
children and adults unsafe; alcohol constituting a significant risk factor.
On behalf of Blackpool Council Community Safety I object to the application for a premises licence at
Sherbourne Convenience Store, 80 Sherbourne Road, Blackpool.
The premises is situated within the Claremont Ward, which is included in the cumulative impact area.
The application is for a convenience store supplying alcohol by way of off sales 10am to 10pm 7 days
a week. The Blackpool Cumulative Impact Assessment 2021 in Figure 1 shows that that Claremont
Ward already has 22 off licence premises.
I am concerned that based on the application the applicant has been given as to how the operation
would not add to existing problems in the area.
I would recommend that this application is refused.

RA Representation Form
LS/F/009/16/1

Page 33

For New / Variation Applications only.
It is recommended that the licence should only be granted if the application is amended, or if
conditions are applied, as detailed below.

RA Representation Form
LS/F/009/16/1

Page 34

Appendix 4e: Blackpool Council Licensing Service
Representation made by a Responsible Authority
to an application for the grant / variation of a Premises Licence / Club Premises Certificate

Responsible Authority
Name of Responsible Authority

Public Health, Blackpool Council

Name of Officer (please print)

Dr. Arif Rajpura, Director of Public Health

Signature of Officer

Dr. Arif Rajpura

Contact telephone number

01253 476363

Date representation made

01

09

2021

Do you consider mediation to be appropriate

No

Premises Details
Premises Name

Sherbourne Convenience Store

Address

80 Sherbourne Road
Blackpool

Post Code

FY1 2PQ

Reasons for making representations
The Public Health Department, Blackpool Council, write in reference to the application for a license to
sell alcohol from Sherbourne Convenience Store in Claremont ward.
Claremont Ward has been subject to the Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP) since 2009.
As stated in Blackpool Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy –
The effect of the policy is to create a rebuttable presumption that applications listed above will be
refused. To rebut this presumption, an applicant would be expected to show through the operating
schedule, and where appropriate, with supporting evidence, that the operation of the premises will
not add to the cumulative impact already being experienced.
Following review of this application, Public Health, Blackpool Council, make a formal objection due to
the following concerns:

RA Representation Form
LS/F/009/16/1

Page 35

Deprivation
Claremont is the 2nd most deprived ward in the country as well as in Blackpool.
70% of households are transient renters who are renting a room

Health related information
There are approximately 124 alcohol related hospital admissions from Claremont per year
The alcohol related admission ratio of 280.4 is almost 200% higher than the national average. In
comparison Blackpool is 83% higher than the national average.*
A&E attendances significantly reduced in 2020/21 due to coronavirus and subsequent restrictions and
lockdowns,
There were 133 ambulance callouts for incidents relating to overdose, ingestion and poisoning (of
which alcohol is one element) in 2020/21 in Claremont
This is a callout rate of 18.2 per 1,000 pop., the second highest rate in Blackpool and 5 times higher
than the Lancashire average of 3.2 per 1,000
Ambulance call out rates for overdose, ingestion and poisoning range from 1.6 in Norbreck to 18.2 in
Talbot
While the callout rate has decreased from last year in Claremont it still has one of the higest rates in
Lancashire

Alcohol reported incidents
There were 28 assault related attendances at A&E in 2020/21 from people living in Claremont
This is an attendance rate (3.8 per 1,000 pop) is over 2 times higher than the Blackpool average (1.4)
Assault related A&E attendances range from 0.3 per 1,000 pop. in Greenlands to 4.2 per 1,000 in
Bloomfield
There were over 458 police recorded domestic abuse incidents in Claremont in 2017/18
The rate of domestic abuse incidents is 62.6 per 1,000 population, the second highest rate in
Blackpool
The Claremont domestic abuse incident rate is more than twice the Blackpool average of 28.7 and
almost 5 times the Lancashire average of 14.3
There were 330 police recorded domestic abuse crimes in Claremont in 2017/18
Along with Bloomfield, Claremont has the highest recorded crime rate for domestic abuse in
Blackpool, a rate of 45.1 per 1,000 population compared to a Blackpool average of 18.9 per 1,000 and
a Lancashire average of 9.7 per 1,000

RA Representation Form
LS/F/009/16/1

Page 36

The domestic abuse crime rate has increased 50% in Claremont over the last three years.
In 2017/18, 581 of Claremonts police recorded incidents had an alcohol qualifier, ie they were
incidents where the consumption and effects of alcohol are more than merely incidental.
Claremont has the highest rate of police incidents with an alcohol qualifier, over 4 times the
Blackpool average (18.7) and over 9 times the Lancashire average (8.3)
The police incident rate with an alcohol qualifier ranges from 4.5 per 1,000 population in
Anchorsholme to 79.4 per 1,000 in Claremont.
While the alcohol related incident rate is significantly higher than the Blackpool average, incidence
rates have remained relatively stable over the last few years.
There were 1,126 notifiable crimes in Claremont in 2017/18 where alcohol consumption was an
aggravating factor
Claremont has the highest rate of alcohol related crime in Blackpool.
The rate of alcohol related crime in Claremont is 153.8 per 1,000 population, over 4 times higher than
the Blackpool average of 33.1 and almost 12 times higher than the Lancashire average of 13.3.
* The admission ratio compares Claremont against a national average of 100. This indirect method of
standardisation means Claremont is compared to the age-specific rates for England as a ratio so while
the ward and Blackpool can compare nationally, they can't be compared to each other.
Ambulance callouts, police incidents and crimes are based on the location of the incident
Hospital admissions and A&E attendances are based on location of residence
1 - PHE, Local Health
2 - Experian Mosaic
3 - TIIG AED Assault data
4 - MADE District Profile - https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/lancashire-insight/made-partnersarea/tables-and-charts/
Concerns regarding the application:
Public Health justifiably has concerns that if an alcohol license is granted to these premises, it would
increase the availability of alcohol in an area which is already experiencing significant levels of
alcohol-related harm. This premise is situated in a ward that has the highest rate of police incidents
with an alcohol qualifier. There are 19 off-licence premises in Claremont ward (data as at 2021). The
maps below demonstrate the cluster of alcohol premises in Claremont ward and the surrounding
areas in relation to the rate of alcohol-related hospital admissions and alcohol-related crime.

RA Representation Form
LS/F/009/16/1

Page 37

RA Representation Form
LS/F/009/16/1

Page 38

Public Health has concerns that this premises is situated in an area where there are also a large
number of premises that sell alcohol within close proximity.
Public Health believes that the applicant has not taken the wider challenging factors of the area into
consideration within their application. We are aware of the problem of street drinking within the
locality in which this premise is located. These problems have a negative impact on public safety and
the health and wellbeing of the local community. The sale of low value/high alcohol products and the
potential negative impact of increasing alcohol availability within this locality are not taken into
consideration.
Public Health would ask the Licensing Committee to consider the potential risks associated with the
increase in the availability of alcohol within this Saturation Area in their deliberations as to whether
to grant this application. It is difficult to see how the granting of this application would not add to the
cumulative impact already experienced in this area.

RA Representation Form
LS/F/009/16/1

Page 39

Data sources:
PHE, Local Health
TIIG AED Assault data
MADE District Profile - https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/lancashire-insight/made-partnersarea/tables-and-charts/
Blackpool JSNA 2019

Dr Arif Rajpura
Director of Public Health, Blackpool Council

RA Representation Form
LS/F/009/16/1

Page 40

